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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of Krystal Gourmet Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Krystal Gourmet Private Limited ("the Company"”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
"Financial Staterments").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March
2025, and its Profit including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is respansible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
caver the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report ithis regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant ta the

preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is respansible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
wholeare free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or In aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention inour auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures areinadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiendies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the malters specified in
paragraphs3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the
bestof our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Repart are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2015, as amended.



(e)

0

(@

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified ason 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of theAct.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to ourseparate Report in “Annexure B",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

R
i,

I,

(a)

(b)

(e

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) bythe company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
investin other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“"Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nathing has come to our notice that cause us to
believe that the representation given by the Management under paragraphs (a)
and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the current year.



vi. The company has used accounting software- Tally Prime for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has been operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Mahendra Doshi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration MNo. 105765W/W101009

WM@

Mahendra Dashi
Designated Partner
Membership No. 041316
UDIN: 25041216 Q1T PP TS S S\
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30t April, 2025




"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KRYSTAL GOURMET PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1, under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company, and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that —

() PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS:-

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitativedetails and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
Right of Use Assets .

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets and hence reporting under clause ()]
(a)(B) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use Assets were physically verified by the
management during the year, No discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence, clause (i) (c) of
paragraph3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) There are no proceedings have been initiated and are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) INVENTORIES:-

{a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals and
no material discrepancies between the books record and physical verification noticed. In our
opinion coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



(i)

LOANS AND ADVANCES, GUARANTEES, SECURITIES:-

The Company has granted unsecured loans to other parties. Point iii (a) and iii(b) are
covered in schedule below, (Rupees in Crores):

Sr Parties Aggregate Amount | Outstanding as | Whether
no of loans and on 31.03.2025 | Prejudicial
Advances (in (in crores) to Interest

crores) of

company

1 Subsidiaries, Joint NIl il NA
Wentures or Associates

2 Other Parties 5.50 5.60 No

(iii) (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of

the records, the Company has granted a loan which is repayable on demand. During the
year, the Company has not demanded repayment of such loan. Having regard to the fact
that the repayment of principal or payment of interest has not been demanded by the

Company, in our opinion, the repayments of principal amounts and receipt of interest are
regular.

(iif) (d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than
ninety days in respect of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in
the nature of loans to any party during the year  and hence clause is not applicable,

(iii) (e) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan which has fallen

due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdue of existing loans given to the same parties.

(i} (f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

(iv)

()

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment granted to Promoters,
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPLIANCE OF PROVISIONS OF SECS. 185 & 186:-

The Company has not directly or indirectly advanced any loans to the person or given
guarantees or securities in connection with the loan taken by persons covered under Section
185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, in
respect of investments, loans, guarantee or security given, as applicable,

COMPLIANCE RELATED TO PUBLIC DEPOSITS :-

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.



(vi)

(vii)

COST RECORDS :-

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of the activities undertaken by the Company.

STATUTORY DUES:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate autharities undisputed statutory dues

including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory
dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding, as at 31% March, 2025 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable except as stated below:

Sr. | Nature of Dues| Amount (Rs.[ Period to which
No. in Amount relates
thousands)
1.| Provident Fund 1594.88 FY 2022-23
2.| ESIC Payable 18.17 FY 2022-23
3.| Provident Fund 72.23 FY 2023-24
4.| ESIC Payable 4.31 FY 2023-24

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been

[vili)

(ix)

deposited as on 315t March, 2025 on account of any disputes,

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTION NOT RECORDED IN BOOKS:-

There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account, or which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), which have been previously unrecorded income.
Therefore, the clause (viii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

LOAN TAKEN:-

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority,



)

(i)

(i)

(il

(c)

(d)

()

(f)

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the

Company has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Compary.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, the Company hasnot taken any funds from

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates, or joint ventures,

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, or joint ventures, or associate companies and hence, reporting under
clause (f) (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable

PREFERENTIAL ALLOTEMENT/ PRIVATE PLACEMENT:-

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause (a) (x) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

FRAUD REPORTING :-

a.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistleblower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

NIDHI COMPANY :-

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act and hence
reporting under, the provisions of clause (a), (b) and (c) (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:-

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act read with related rules, the
Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee and therefare, requirement
related to Audit Committee approval of related party transactions are not applicable
tothe Company. The Company Is in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, as
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.



{v)

(xv)

(o)

(xvii)

{xviii)

(xix)

REPORTING ON INTERNAL AUDIT SYSTEM:-

Internal audit is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under this clause is
not applicable.

NON CASH TRANSACTION WITH DIRECTORS:-

During the year, the Company has not entered any non-cash transactions covered by
Section 192 of the Act with its directors or persons connected with them and hence,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable,

REGISTRATION WITH RBIL:-

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clauses 3(xvi) (a), (b),
and

(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as
per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order Is nat
applicable.

CASH LOSSES:-

The company has not incurred cash loss during the financials year covered by our audit
and immediately preceding Financial year.

RESIGNATION OF STATUTORY AUDITORS:-

During the year, the previous statutory auditors, T R Chadha & Co LLP, resigned from
their position. Also, there were no specific concerns or objections raised by the Previous
Auditor.

OPINION ON LIQUIDITY:-

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causesus to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get dischargedby the Company as and when they fall due.



{20t} CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:-
a. There are no CSR projects carried out by the Company and there is no unspent CSR
amount required to transfer a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies
Actwithin a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with
second proviso to sub-Section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.

b. There are no ongeing CSR projects run by the Company and hence, there is no amount
remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant
to any ongoing project, which is required to transferred to special account in
compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act.

For Mahendra Doshi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration MNo. 105765W/W101009

PMalegm X afil-

Mahendra Doshi
Designated Partner
Membership No. 041316
UDIN: 2504]1316BMIPPTSSSI
Placa: Mumbai

Date: HDﬂ‘AprEI, 2025




ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF KRYSTAL GOURMET PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control with reference to financial statements of KRYSTAL

GOURMET PRIVATE LIMITED ("the company™ as of 31" March, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year then ended.

Management Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established
bythe Company considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued bythe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s pelicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143(10)of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards andthe Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materal
misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com pany;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted acoounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assetsthat could have a material effect on the Financial Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Mahendra Doshi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 105765W/W101009

N BURVRN P c
EHAHTERE'D

ACCOUNTANTS

Mahendra Doshi
Designated Partner
Membership No. 041316
UDIN: 250416 PMILPP TS S8
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30" April, 2025



Krystal Geurmet Private Limited
CIN MocU15400MHE2002PTC195359
(il Armounts are % In Millions unless otherwise stated]

Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025

o 25041216 AMIPPTS 58!

_ |Particulars Maote Asat fis at
315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Agsalys
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3a 1899 1118
Right-of-use assets 3b 6.32 #.80
Firancial Assets
(8] Cther financial assets 4 17.57 8.7
Deferrad tax assets {nat) 5 L&l 165
Incarme tax assets [net] g .47 .15
Tatal Non-Current Assets 44.56 42.53
Current Assets
Inwentories 7 0.8 152
Financial Assets
{a) Trade recesvables E 154.41 156.16
(&) Cash and eash aguivalants L] 70.25 1184
[c} Bank Balances ather than (i) above 10 .0z 0.08
[} Loans. 11 56.03 -
[e] Dther financial assets 12 0.E5 .40
Curret Tax assots [net) 13 176 33
Cther current assets 14 BLDD 569
Total Current Assats 364.95 180,01
Total Assets A0%.91 Z22.50
Equity and Liabilities
Equiny
Equity share capltal 15 B.43 643
Dther equity 15 50.65 3271
Tatal Equity 5707 39.12
Liabilities
HNon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
{a} Barrawings a7 0.4 0.53
{b] Lease hakilities 18 5,10 746
Frovisions 1z 1,46 101
Total Non-Current Liabilities 6,99 8,00
Currant Liabilitias
Financlal Liablifties
[a) Barrowings 20 20283 3.5
b} Lease liahilities i 236 215
{c) Tragie payables
1] Total eutstanding duss of micro enterprises and small enterprises i1 - 141
11} Totad outstanding dues of creditars other than micra entesprises and small enterpsises Fh 84,60 100.68
[d} Other financial liabilities 3661
Other current liabilties 178
Provdskons 021
Tatal current llabilities 174.40
Tolal Liabilities 183.40
Total Equity and Lishilities 232.54
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Stalamenis
[he Per Our Attached Arpert of Evan Date it of Deactars
For Mahendrs Doshi and Assscistes LLP
Chartared Accountants
Firm's Regisration Na, §05785%W,\W 101009
o lsndan Yatb (S cusreren
ACCOUNTANTS
CA Mahendra Dashi Shubleam Lad
Designated Fartnes iretar Dirnctor
Membership Mo, 041316 {Din-01710743) (DMN- 07357554)
Date: Diate: 30/04/2025
m:sﬁ‘ﬂqlwls Place: Mumbai




Krystal Gourmet Private Limited

CIN No:U15400MH2009PTC195359

{All Amounts are 3 in Millions wnbess otherwise statad)

Statement of Profit And Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

Particulars Mote For the year ended
31st March 2025 315t March 2024

Income

Revenue from operations 5 751.99 300.84
Cther income 16 182 0.27
Total Income 753.91 301.11
Expenses

Cost of material and store and spare consumed 27 61231 198.34
Employes benefit expense 28 40.13 3133
Finance costs 29 831 3.61
Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 594 C.A4z
COther expenses 31 60.07 56.59
Total Expenses TI6T4 29529
Prafit / {loss) before exceptional items and tax 2717 5.83
Exceptional tems - -
Profit / {loss) before tax 2117 5.E3
Tax expense: 41

Current tax 824 317
Deferred tax 1.0% (D.67)
Total Tax Expenses 036 2.50
Profit/{Loss) far the year 17.51 3.33
|Other Comprehensive Income

{i} 1tams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurament losses on defined banefit plans EE] 0.04 {0.28)
(i) Deferred tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.01) 0.03
Other Comprehensive Income/{lass) Tor the year, net of tax 0.03 {0.20]
Total Comprehensive income for the year 17.94 313
Earnings per equity share (rominal value € 10/- per share)

Rasic {in INR) 32 78T 517
[Hluted in (INR} 32 787 5,17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statemants

Az Par Ous Attached Report of Even Date
For Mahendra Doshi and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Mo. 1057E5WAW101004

Ca Mahendra Doshi
Designated Partner
Membership Mo, 031316

pate: olog|ze28
Place: Mumbal

uoin- 2504L13aAMTPPTSSE]

fractor Director
[DIN-01710743) {DIN-07557584)

Date: 30/04/2025
Place; Mumbai




Krystal Gourmet Private Limited

CIM Mo UL S400M HID0SFTC185355

1Al Amaunts are Tin Milllons unless otherwise stated)

Statement of ehanges In Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025

{A) Equity share capital {issued and Subscribed)

Particulars lote Amaunts
Balance as at 315t March 2023 6.43
Changes in equity share capital .
Balance &t st 315t March 2024 15 .43
Changes in aquity share capital =
Balance os at 31st March 2025 6.43
{B) Other equity

Itemis of ather

Particulars Reservas and Sunplus comprehengive
Irncame Other Equity
Remeasurement of | attributable to
Securitlas Aetalned the net defined Equity
Premium eaArnimgs banefit

linbility/assat
Balance as at 31st March 2023 1104 18322 nIE 2958
Praofit for the year ended March 2024 - 333 - 3.33
Other comprehensive income for the year - - {270 (0,204
Balance as at 315t March 2024 11.08 11.55 0.08 271
Frofit for the year ended 31st March 2025 - 1751 - 1791
Other comprehensive incoma for the year - - 0.03 0.03
Balance as at 31st March 2025 11.08 | | 33,46 011 50L65
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Finencial Statements f ,
As per our attached report of even date If of Board of Directors
For Mahendra Doshi and Associates LLP ourmpt Private Limiied
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reglstration Mo, 1057 65W/ W101003
[Ty P Nate
€A hMahendra Doghi U-{LHTEF.ED

n 5
Designatad Partner ACCOUNTANT Shubham
Membership No. 041318 Drectar
{DIN-01710743) {DIN- 075575 84)

mate Zo|oey|2025 Date: 30/0M/2025
Flace: Mumbal Plaee: Mumbai

o 2 60413 ARMTPPTSSE!




Krystal Gourmet Private Limited
LI Mol 5400hHI00FTC195359

{adl Amounts are ¥ in tdillions unless otherwise stated)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 33st March 2025

Particulars For the year ended
31stMtarch 2025 | 31stMarch 2024
Cash flows from operating sctivities
_ | Profit before tax 7y 583

vt profit before tax 3717 583
Dapreciation and amortisation 554 542
Flmance costs 231 361
Interest incaome (187] 10.27)
Balznce Written off 1.53 077
AMlowance for expected credlt loss [0.3E) 132
Profit on sale of Properties, Flant and Equiprments [0.03) -
Dperating Profit bafore change In working capital 40,70 16.68
Changes in working capital;

Adjustments for {increase) [/ decrease In aperating assets:

Inventaries 070 [0, 26

Trade recelvables, loans, other financal azats and other assats 057 1141.55)

Financial and Duver Asser (BO.36) 583

Trade payables, ather fannchal tiabillties and other llablktles (0.08) 115.99

Provisions _051 o
Changes in working capltal 178.65] {1E.28))
Lass . Tax paid [net) 19.55] |L.E5]
Cash flows generated fromf{used in) operating actlvitbes [47.20) (3.25)
Cash flows from investing activitios
|Furchase) f sales of property, plant and equipments (0.24) [L73)
pank depaosits (having ariginal maturity of more than 3 years) [net} 0.0 (.08
Loan |given) / repald - retated parties and others (net) {56.03) -
[Purchasa] f Sales of Invesiment - 0.oo
Interedt recelvad LE7? 027
cash fiows generated fromy [used in} Investing Activities {54.34) {1.53)
Cash flows frem financing activitias
Repayments of Non-Current Borrowings f0.11) fora)
Proceeds from/repayments of] Current borrowings {net) 17125 1838
Payment &f lease llabilities {313 12,501
Interest payment [7.33) [2.65)
Cash flows generated fram/fiused in) financing activities 160.66 13,07
Met changes in cash and cash equivelents 5E.41 a1g
Cash and cash equivaients as at the beginning of the year [refer note 10} 11.84 3.56
Cash and cash equivalents asat the end of the year 70,25 11.84
Components of cash and cash equivalents {rafer note 9)
Cash om hand 030 0,75
Balances with banks E2.06 11.09
Cash and cash equlvalents as per statemant of cash flows 0,25 11.84
Note:

1. The sbaove Cash Elow Statemant has been prepared under the "lndirect Method” as set out in the Indian accounting Standard-7 &n Cash Fiow Statements.
2. Privious perlod figures have been regrouped | reclassifed [ rearranged wherever nocassary to make them cosmparable to those for the current yaar,
5. Change |m Lighiliog Arising From Finencing Acthitias

01/ farllj 2025 ‘Cazh Elow 1,/Mareh/2075
Berrawing - Nan-Current (Refar Nate | [incl. current matuitity) 053 (o113 042
Borrowing - Current (Refer Note | 31.57 17135 20283
3210 17114 20425
O/ ipril/ 2033 Cash Flow 31/ Marchy/ 2034
Barrowing - Non-Current [Aefer Nate ) lincl, current maturinyg 054 1 0.53
Barrawing - Current (Refer Mote | 1320 1 31,57
13.89 1637 12,10
The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statemants
As Per Qur attached Repart of Even Date d af Directors
For Mahendra Doshi and Associates LLP

Chartéred Atcountants
Firm's Registration Mo, LOSTESW/WLO1003

A Mahendra Dashi alsham Lad
Deslgnated Fartaar Direcuar
Membership Mo, 031316 [miM- 07557584)
pate: R@|ogyl2zo2S

Flace: Mumbal
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Krystal Gourmet Private Limited
CIN Mo U1 5400MHID0SFTCIS5359
{All Amounts are 3 in Milions unless otherwise stated)

1

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

Carporate Information

Erystal Gourmet Private Umited (the Company} was Incorporated undar the provisions of the companies Act, 1956 on August 31, 2009, The repistersd office of
KGPL 15 Krystal House 154 17, Shivaji Fort CHS, Duncans Causeway Road, Mumiai - 400 022, Maharashira, Indla.

The Company provides catering services 10 educational institutions and hospitals, slse Company offers full range of food and beverage services according 1o
the time schedules customised by the customer, including breakfast, lunch and dinnars for employees, Companmy offer catering services through centr Kitchen
located in Kalina.

Basks for Preparation, Measurement and Material Accounting Policies

Basks for Preparation

Statemant of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {'the Act) (to
the extent notifled). The Ind AS are presoribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 &f the Companies (Indian Atcounting Standards) Rules, 2015 iﬂdr
Comgpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The Ind &5 financial statements aré presentad in Indian Rupees () which §s also the Company's functional currency and all amounts have been rounded off to
the nearest millions, unless otherwise stated.

Basis for Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following:

I, Certaln financial assets and liabilities that are qualified to be measured at fair value refer accaunting pakicy on financiad Instrumeants);

1l. employes benefits where plan asset is measured at fair value less presant value of defined benefit obligations {"DBO").

The group's interast In the joint venture namely Krystal-Aquachem 1V is accovnted for using equity method as prescribed in relevant Indian Accounting
Standard.

Materizl Aceounting Policies

Use of estimates and Judgements

The praparation of the Finandial Statements [n confatmity with lnd AS requires managament to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets, labilitles, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from theie gstimates.

Estimates and underbying assumpticns are reviewed on 3 periodic basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and In any future periods affected. In particular, infarmation about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting palicies that have the mast signiflcant effect on the amounts recoprised in the financizl statements is inchuded in tho fallewing notes:

impairment of nan-financial assets - Mon-financial assets are tested for Impairment by determining the recoverable amount. Determination of recaversbie
amount is based on value In use, which is present value of future cash flows. Thie key ingaits Used i the present value ealoulations Indude the axpacted fU't'uIEf
growth in operating revenues and marging in the forecast pericd, terminal growth rates and discount ratas which ere subject to significant judpement.

Contingent habilities: Contingent liakllities are nat recognised In the Financial Staternents but are disclosed in the notes. They are assessed continually to
determing whethar an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probasie that an outllow of future economdc
banafits will be raquired for an itern previously dealt with as a contingent liability, 3 provigion is recognised in the financial statements of the periad in which the
changa in probability occurs (excopt in the extremely rare circumstances where no raliabla estimate can be madaj,

Income taxes: Significant judpsments are Invalved In determining tha provision for Income taxes, including the amount expected ta be paid or recoverad In
coanection with uncertain tax positdons,

Impoirment of finandal assets: The Company asseibes on 8 lenward laoking basis the expected eredit losses assoclated with its assets carrled at amortised
Cosk

Measurement of delined benefit obigations: Key actuarial assumptions vsed Tor actuarial valuation.

Property, plant and equipment: Useful life of asset.

Other estimates: The preparation of finandial statements invalves estimates and assumptions that affect the reportad amount of assets, llabilities, disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of finandial statements and the repared amount of revenues and axpanses for the reporting pariod. Specifically, the Company
estimates the probability of colection of sccounts receivable by analyzing histarical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer creditwarthingss
and current economic trends, IF the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be reguired.

Measurement of Fair Value
Sowme of the Company's accounting palicles and dischoswres require the messwrement of falr values, for both financial and nonfinancizl assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair vlue higrarchy baged on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:
= Level 1: quoted grices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labifities,

- Lewel 2: Inputs other than guoted prices inchuded in Level 1 that are cbservable far the asyet ar liabifity, sither directly (e, as prices) or indirectly {Le. derived]
from prices).

- Lewel 3: inputs for the asset or Gakiliny that aré not based on ebservable markek data (unobservabla [ngists).

Whan maasuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses obsesvable market data as far a5 possible. If the Inputs used to measure tha falr value
of an asset or a liabliity fall into dafferent leveds of the foir vabee higracchy, then the falr value measurement is categorised In its entirety in the same level of the,
fair value higrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.




Current and nan-current classification

The Comparny prasents assats and lizbilities in the balance sheet based on currenty non-current classification. An asset iz reated as current when it is:
1, Expected to be realisad or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating oyce;

. Held primarlly for the purpose of trading;

3. Expected to be reafised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

&_ Cash or cash equivatent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setthe a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assots ade classified as non-current.

Aliahility is eurrent whan:

1. itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

2. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading:

3. 1t Is due to be settled within tweha manths aftar the repacting period; or

4. Thera is no unconditicnal right to dafer the sottlement of the liahifity for at least twalve months after the reparting pericd.

&l other liabilities are clazsified as non-current.
Deferrad tax assats and labilitkes are cdassified as non-current assets and labilities.

The operating cyels i the time batwaeen the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in ash 2nd cash equivalents. The company has lﬂerﬂiﬁﬂlr
vercive months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmant, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price Including import duties and non-refundable purchase tawes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the Items to its warking condition fer its intended use and extimated cost of dismanding
and removing the item and restoring the site on which [t is located,

Subsegquent expenditistes relating to property, plant and equipmant is capitalized enly when It is probable that future economic benefits associated with these
will fiow to the Company and the past of the item can be measured relishly. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised In the statement of profit and loss
whan incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the
resultant gains or losses ara recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Assets to b disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying valug or the fair
walue less cost oo s2ll.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a Stralpht Line Method ‘SUW') over estimated useful Bfe of the fixgd assets estimated by the Management. The management
believes that the useful lues as ghven belaw best represent the period over which management expacts to use these assets based on an internsd agsessment
and technical evaluation where necessary. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under part C of Schedula Il of

the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation for assets purchased) sold during the year s proportionately charged. The Company estimated the useful lives for fixed
assets ak fallows:

Category Useful Life
Building 30 ¥ears
Plant & hachinery 310 Years
Furriture & Flsturas 3-10Years
sorvers B Metwarks B Years
Vehicles B Years
Computar Peripherats 3 Years
[Leazehold improvements Owver the l=ase term

The assets residusl value and uselul fives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, 3t the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately ta lts recovershle amount if the asset’s carrying amaount is greatar than its estimated recovarable amount.

Galris and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceads with carrying amount, These are Included in profit or Joss within sther gains/losses.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of praparty, plant and equipment eutstanding at each balance sheet date i classified as capital advances under ather non
current assets and the cost of the assets not put to use before such date are dischosed under 'Capital work-in-progress’,

Intangible Assats

Intangible assets are recognised whan itis probable that the future econemic benefits that are attributable to the assets will fiew 1o the Company and the cost
of the asset can be measured rehiably.

Intangibls assets acquired segarately are measured on inital recogrition at cost. The cost of invtangible assets scquized in @ business combination is their fair
value at the date of acqudsition. Subsequent to Initial recognition, intangible assets are carriad at cost less any accumulated smertisatidn and accumulated
impairment Insses. Intarnally ganarated Intanglbtes, excluding copitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflocted in
prafit or loss in the period in which the expanditure is incurrad.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets are smartised in statement of Profit and Loss aver their estimated useful lives based on underlying contracts where applicable.
The amartisation period and the amartisation method for an intangiile assat with a finite useful [ife ars reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.




&

impairment of inanglbla assets and property, plant and equipment

Intangible assots and progarty, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverabdity whanever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impainment testing, the recoverable amount (e, the higher of the falr value less cost to sell and the valus-
in-tsse) Is determined on an ndividual asset basis unlass the asset does not generate cash fows that are largely independent of thete from ather assets. in such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the assat belongs.

i uech assats are considered to be impairad, the impairment to be recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss i measwred by the amount by which the
carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated racaverable amaunt of the asset. An impairment loss Is réversed in the statement of profit and loss i there|
has been & change in the estimates uvsed to determine the recoverabis amaunt.

The carrying amount of the asset is increated 1o its revised recoverabla amount, provided that this smount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have besn determingd [net of avy accemulatad amortisztion or depreciation) had no impairment koss been recognised for the aseetin prior years.

Leases
A contract i3, or contains, &lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 3 perisd of time in exchange for considarathon

The Company a5 a Lesses

The Company essesses whether a contract containg @ leade, at inception af & contract. To sssess whether 3 contract conveys the right to control the use of an
Identified asset, the Company assesses whaether:

1. The contract inwolves the use of an dentified asset.

2. The Company has substantizlly all of the economic benefits from wse of the asset throwgh the perod of the lease; and

3, The Company has the right ta direct the use of asset.

s the data of commencement of the lzase, the Campany receanizas a right-of-use-asset {*ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for afl lease arrangements
In which it ks a lessee, except far leases with & term of twelve months or bess (short-tesm leases) and bow value leates, For these shart-term and low valus
lzases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expansa on @ stralght-ling basis over the term of the lease.

The of right-of-ute asseis are inktially recopnized at cost, which comprises the Initial amisunt of the lease liability sdjucted for any lease paymant made prior to)
the cosmmencemeant date of the lease plus any initial direct costs lass any lease incentives. They e subseguently measured at cost bess accurmnulatad
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-to-use assets are depreciated from the commincement date on a straight-ling basis aver the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underying
asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes i circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recaverable, For the purpose of inpalrment testing, the recoverable amount [i.e, the higher af the lair value less cost ta sell and the value-in-use) Is datermined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independant of those from other assets, In such cases, the
recoverable amownt is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (DGU) 1o which the assets belong.

The fease Bability iz initially measured af amortized cost at the present value of the future lease paymenits: The lease payments are dacounted using the
interest rate implicitin the lease or, 1f not readily determinable, using the incramental Borrowing rates in the ecuntry of changes its assessment If whather it will
enercise 3n extension or a termination option.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the hease being avaluated or for a portfolio of leases with simitar
chiargCtoristios.,

Lease lability and ROU asset have bean ssparately presented in the respective Note and lease gayments hava been classified as financing cash flows.

The Group 25 a Lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating bease, Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of awnership o the lasses, the contract ks dassified a5 a finance lease. All other leases are classified 23 opuerating leases.

Wihen the Company ks an intermadiate lassor, it accounts for its intorests in the head l2ase and the sublease separately, The subleasa (s classified as a finance
or operating lease by reference to the right-ol-use asset arising from the head lease.

Foroperating leases, rental incoma is recagnized on o straight line basis over the term of tha relavant lease.

Inventories

ttems of imventories are measured @t lower of cost and nat reafisable value after providing for obsclescence. Cost of inventories is ascertained on FIFD basis
Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cast of canversion and ather costs indiuding overheads netof recoverable xes incurred in bringing tham to
their respective piesent lacation and condition.

Cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance shieet comparise cash at banks and on hand and short-tanm deposits with an original maturity of theee months or less,
which are subiject to an insignificant risk af changes in value, For the purposa of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shnrt‘

term deposits, au definad above.




10 Financial Instruments
Financial asse1s and financial [labilities are racognised when the Company bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrement.

A Financial Assers
Initial recognition end measurement
Al finaricial assets are recognised Initialhy at fabr value plus, In the case of financial assets not recordad at feir walug through profit or foss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acsuisition of the financial aassL Transaction costs of-fnancial assets carmied at fzir value through profitor loss are expensed in profit or
loss.

Fanancial assets are claasifiad, at inttial recegnition, a= financial assets measured at fair value or a3 financial assets measured at amartised cost,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measerement, financial assets are dassified n four categories:
1. Financial assets at amortised cost

1. Finamcial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income [FYTOCH

3. Financial dssety at fair value through profit or loss {FYTPL)

4. Equity instruments measured at fair valua through cther comprohensive income (FYTOCE)

Fimancial asset at amaortised cost

A financial asset is measured at the snortised eost if both the following conditions are met!

1. The assek i hald within o busingss model whose objective s ko hold aszsts for collecting contractual eash flows, and

2. Contractual terms of the asset ghve rise on specified dates to cash flows that aro solely payments of pringipal and vterest (SPPI) an the prindpal amownt
outstanding,

After inttizl measurament, such financial assets ars subsequently measured at amotisad cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) mathod, Amortised cost s
caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium on scquisitien and fees or casts that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation & included
i finarce incama in the profit of lass, The losses arising Trom Impalrment are recognised in the profitor loss. This category geaerally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Finanelal assat at FYOCI

A financial asset ks clagsified as at the FYTOCO if both of the fallowing eriteria are met:

1. Thia objective of the busingss model B achieved bath by collecting contractual cash flows and salling the financial assets, and
2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Financial asset at FYTPL

FVTPL Is a residual categary for debt instruments. Ay debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categnrizstion as at amortized east or as FVTOC), s

classified as at FWTPL.

fn addition, 3 Company may elect to designate a debt Instrument, which otherwise meets amonieed cost or FYVTOC oriterla, as at FVTPL. Howeear, such
slection is allowed anly if doing so reduces or eliminabes 3 measurement of recognition inconsistency {referred to as *scoounting mismatch’). The Company hix
not designated any debt instrement as at FYTPL, Financial assets included within the FYTPL category are measured at falr value with all changes recognized in
the Statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments Other than Investments in subsidiaries, assodiates and joint ventures

All equity Investments in scope of nd A5 109 are measured at fair vabue and are classified as FYTPL

Da-recognition

Thi Company derecognises financial assets when:

1. The rights to receivs cash fiows from the asset have explred, or

4, The Company has transferred its nghts to receive cash fows from the asset or has assumed an obligation o pay the recelved cash flows in full withoug
materlal delay 18 a third party under & ‘pass-throush’ arrangemant; and elthar

a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b the Cempany has nelther transfarred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, buthas transfarred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred it5 fghts to receive cach flows from an asset of has enterad inta a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates If and ta what
extent it has retaingd the risks and rewsrds of ownership. When It has neither transferred nor retained substantially alf of the risks and rewards of the asset,
nor transfarred contral of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing nvalvament. In that
pasa, the Company also recognises an asseciated Wability, The transferrad asset and the associaved fiakdity are measured on 2 basis that reflacts the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvament that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset s measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses bmpairmeant based on expected cradit loss (ECL) model to the following:

1. Financial assets measured at amortisad cost;

2 Financial assets measured at fir value through other comprehensive income [FYTOCI

Expocted credit losses pre messured theough a loss allowance at an amount equal ta:

1. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that cesult from those default everns oncthe financial instrumeant that are possible within 12
months aftar the reporting date); or

2. Full time expected credit [osses (expacted cradit basses that result from all possible default evants ovar the ifg of the financial instrument],

The Company fallows simplified spproach” for recognition of impairment loss aliowance on trade receivables or contract ravenue recelvables.




The Company follows the simplified approach parmitted by ind 85 109 — Financial Instruments- for recognition of impairment loss allowanse, The spplication of
simplifizd approach doss not require the Campany to track changes In credit risk of trade receivable. The Company caloulates the expected credit losses an
trade recalvables on the basls of its historical credit loss experience. The Company follaws “simphified approach’ far recagmition of impairment loss allowances on
trade racelvabiles er contract revenue receivatles,

ECL impairment loss allowance [or rewersal] recognized dusing the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statemant of profit and lass. This amount s
reflected under the head “other expenses’ In the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments Is described
befow:

Financial assets measured 2 at amartisad cost, contractual ravanue receivables and l2ase receivables: ECL Is presented a5 an allewance, Le,, a3 an integral part
of the meacurement of thse assats In the balancs sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, tha Company
does not reduce impairment efiowance from the gross carrying amount.

Lean commitments and financial guarantes contracts; ECL s predented a8 a provision in the bslance sheat, Le, a5 2 labiliey.

Far assessing increase In credit sk and impalrment lass, the Company combines financisl instruments en the basis of shared cradit risk characteristics with the
phjnctive of facilitating an analysis that |s designad te anable significant increases in credit risk to be idantified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or eriginated credit-impaired (PO financial assets, &, finandal assets which are credit impaired &a purchase/
originatian,

The Company follows ‘simplified appreach’ for recogmition of impairment lass allawanee on trada receivables or contract revenue recebvables.

Financial liabilities and aquity instrumeants
Classification as debt oo equity

Financial Babilities and equity Instroments Issued by the Company are clagsifled sccording 1o the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial Kability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences & residial nterest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of Its lizbllites, Equity instruments are
rocorded at the proceeds recelved, net of direck issue costs.

Financial Babilities
Initial recognition and measurement

il finansial Eabilities are recognised initally at fair value and, In the case of lsans &nd borrowings and payables, net of direcily atiribulable transaction costs.

Tha Carnpany's financial liabilites includa trade and other payables, knans and barrowings including bank ovardrafts,

Subsequent measurement

The measurament of financial liabllies depends on their classification, as dascribed below:
1. Finznclal lishilties at fair valua through profit or loss

2. Loans and berrewings measured on amartised cost basls

3. Financid guarantae contracls

Finanelal abilities at fair valve through profit or boss
Financlal labilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial Kabilitias designated upon Inidal recognition s at
falr value through profit or loss, Financlal liabilities are classified as held far trading If they are incurred for the purpose of regurchasing in the near term,

Gains or losses an liabilites hald for trading are racognized in the profit or lass,

Financial liabilities designated upan initial racognition at fair value through prafit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only If the
critasin in Ind AS 108 are satisfied, For llabilities designatad as FYTPL, fair value galng/ lasses attributabla to changes In own credit risk are recognized in OCL
These gains/ Ioss are not subsequently transferred o the Statoment of profit and loss. Howevar, the Company may trarsfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Al gther changes in fair valze of such liabllity are recognised in the statement of profit and logs, The Campany has not designated any Fnancial liabilty
as at FVTPL

Loans and barrowings

After initlal recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently mueasured 5t amorticed cost using the EIR method, Gaing and losses are
tecognised in the Statemant of profit and logs when the liabilities are derecognised as well as thraugh the FIR amartisation process. fumortised cost s calculated
by taking into account any disseunt ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an Integral part of the EIR, The EIR amertisation i& included a3 finance
tosts in the Staternent of profit and loss.

Finantial puarantes contracls

Financiel guarantes cantracts issusd by the Company sra those contracts:that require 3 paymeant 1o ha made 1o reimburse the holder for 3 loss it fneurs
because the specified debtor fails to make 3 payment when due in sccordance with thie terms of @ debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
racognised initially as @ liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable o the lssuance of the glarantae. Subsequently, the
fizbility i measured at the higher of the amount of loss sllowanca determimed as per impairment regulrements of ind AS 109 and the amaunt recognised bess
cumulative amortisation,

Derecognition

A firancial lisbifity | deracopnised when tha obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Yhen an extsting financial liability is replaced by
another fram the same lender on substantiably different terms, or the terms of an existing liabilit are substantially madified, such an axchange or modification
it treavad as the derscopnition of the original Gabillty and the recopnition of 3 new Eability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts Is recognized in
the statement of profit and hoss.

Off-satting af linancial Instruments

Financisl assats snd finansal liabilities are offs&t and the net smoynt is reported in the balance sheetif there is @ currently enforcrable lagal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there |5 an intention to setile an 3 net basis, to realise the assets and setile the liskilities simultaneoushy.




D Derivative financial Instrumants
Initial recognition and subsaquent maasurement
Tha Company uses derivative financial Instrumants, such &5 forward currency contracts, to hedge its forelgn curtency risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are Initially recognised at Tair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered inta and are subsequently re-measured at fair vatue
[erlvatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabifities when the fair wakea ks nagative,
Ay galng or lossas arising from chenges in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to prafit or bass, except for the affective portlon of cash fow hedges,
which i recognised in OC and |ater reclassified to profit or loss whan the hedge itzm affects profit or lass or treated as basis adjustment if 3 hedged forecast
transaction subsequently resulis in the recognition of a non-financlal aszet or nion-financial liahility.
Premium/Diseount, in respect of forward foreign exchange contracy, 15 recopnlsed over the lile of the contracts, Exchangs differences on such contracts are
recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the exchange rate changes. Frofitflods an eaaceliation / renewasl of forward exchangs
contract is recopnized as incomefexpense.

11 Provisions, Contingent llabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments:
Fravisions are recogrised wher the Company has 3 present ohiigation [legal or constructive) as a result of & past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to sattle the obligation and & reliable estimate can be mada of the amount of the chligation. When the
Company espects some or all of & provision to be resimbursed, for example, under 5n Insurance contract, the reimbursement is racognised as @ separate asser,
bt anly when the relmbursement ks virtually cermain. The expense relating to & provision is presented n the statement of profit and less net of any
retmbursement.
iF the effect of the tima vslue of manay is materkal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflzcts, when apgpropriate, the risks spacific 1o
the liabifity. When discounting is used, the ncrease in the pravision due to the passage of time Is recognied as afinance cost.
Cantingent Bability is disclosed in the case of
1. & prezent obligation arksing from the past events, when it |s not pratable that an cutflow of reseurces will be required o settle the obfigation;
2. & present obligation arising fram the past evants, whan no reliable estimate [s possible;
3. A possible obligation arising from the past avents, uniess the probabilioy of outflow of resources is remote.
Frovisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assats and commitments are reviewed a1 each balance sheet date,

12 Taued
Current Tax

Current fncome tax asgets and lisblites are measurad at the amaunt expected to be recoverad from or paid 10 the taxation authorities, based an the rates and
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country whare the entity operates and gererates taxable Income.

Current tax ltems are recopnised in correlatian to the underlylng transaction either in OCH or directly in equity.

Management pariodically evaluatas pesitions taken in the e returns with respect o sktuations in which applicable ta regulations are subject ta interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
peferred 1ax s provided using the balance shaet approach on temporary differances at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carresponding carrying amounts for the financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax ass8ts are the ameunts of incame tasas recoverable in future periods in respect oft
1. deductibie tamporary differences:

2, the carry forward of unused tax bosses; and

3. the carry forward of unused tax credits,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed &t each reporting date and reduced to the saent that it is no longes prabable that sufficlént taxsbie
prafit will be avaitable 1o allow 2ll or part of the deferred tax assat to be utllised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-sssessed at each roparting date and
are racopnised to the extent that it has became probable that futire taxable profits will allew the deferrad tax asset to be recovered,

Diferrad tax assuts and liabdities are measured at the tax rates that are ewpected ta apply In the year when the asset is realised or the ability Is settled, based
am taw rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Defarrad tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recopnisad putside profit or loss (eithar in other comprehensive income arin equity). Deferred
tak tems are recognisad n-correlation te the underlying transaction either in OC) or directly in equity

Deferred tax essets and deferied tax labilities are offset If a legally enforesable right exists to set off current fx assets againet cUrrent tax liabifithes sl the
defersed taxes felate ta the same tasable entity and the same taxation authaority.
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Revenue recognitian

The Company derives ravenie primarily [ram manpower services carnprises of facility managarment service, security service and other manpawer basad
solutions.

pevenues framn customer contracts are considered for recognithon and measurement whed the contract has been anproved by the parties to the contract, the
parties o contract are committad to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the coniract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognised
upan transfer of contral of promised products or sedvices {"performance obligations’] to customers in an ameount that feflects the consideration the Coempany
has receivad or experts to recelve In exchange far thesa products or services {"transaction price®), When thara is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue
recognition is postpongd until such uncertasnty s resolved,

The cantract with customer for stalfing services, generally contains a single performance obligation and revenue ic measured at the fair value of the
consideration recelvad or racalvable, taking into sccount contractually defined terms of payment and excluding t@xes ar dutics collactad on bahalf of the
gowermment.

The Company's contracts may Include varisbfe consideration inchuding discaunts and penalties which are reduced from revenues and recogrised based an an
s4timate of the expected payout relating 1o these corsiderations.

Revenus from manpower services is recopnised over time since the customes simultansously receives and consumes the benefits. The Invelcing for these
services is eithes based on cost plus a samvice fee or fiked fae model.

The Company has concheded that it s the principal in all of its fevenue arrsngements since it Is the primarity abligorand has pricing latitude which establishes
contrel befare transferring preducts and sarvices to the customer.

The Comparny's receivables are rights to consideration that are unconditional, Unbilled revenues comprising revenues in excess of Inveiding are dassifled a5
financial asset when the right to consideration & unconditional and is due only after o pasdage of time. Unbilled revenuas are preseénted under Trade
recelvables, while inveiting in excess of revenuas are classified as unearned revenue.

Othar Income

Dither income camprisas primarily interest income on deposits, dividend income and galnf [Joss] on dispasa) of financial assets and non-financhsl assets. interest
incomne ks recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised whan the right torecaive payment i established,

Government Granls

Government grants are recognised where thare is reasonabie assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditizns will e complied with. All the
grants related to an dxpense item are recognised a5 income on @ systematic basis over the perinds that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed,

Employes Benefits

Short-term employes henafits

A finkility Is recognised for benefits accruing to employess in respect of wages and salaries in the paricd the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
ameunt of the benefits axpectad to be paid in exchange for that serviee. Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis as the retated
saryice s provided,

Compensated absences

The smplayees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences, For the purpase, the company follows Calender Year and not Financlal Year. In House
employeas can not carry forwand a portion of the unutiliszd accumulating compensated absences snd utilise it in futire perinds or receive cash 1 retisement or
tarmination af employmant. The Campany racords an abligatien for compansated abssncas in the periad in which the emaloyee renders the services that
increases this entitlement, The obligation i detormined by management assesmant of amount payahle at each balapce shest date. In case of, on site
empleyees, the compensated advances are part of there Compensation Package and the same i< provided to them on demand/at the time of Full and Final
Settlemeant.

pccumulated compensated absences, cansidering the nature, are expected to be svailed prancached within 12 menths fram the end af the year are treated a3
short term employes banefits.

pefined contribution plan

Under @ defined contributian plan, the Company's only obligation is to pay a fieed amount with mo ohlipation to pay further contributions if the fund does nat
hold sufficient assets to pay &l employes benefits. The Company makes specified manthly contributions towards Employee Pravident Fund to Government
admiristerad Provident Fund Scheme which Is a defined contribution plan, The expenditura for defined eontribution plan i recognised as expenae during the
perind when the employee provides service,
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Definad benefit plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company proviges for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of
ernployment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The Company’s pratulty fund is managed by Ufe insuranee
Corporatian of kndia (LIC). The present value of gratuity ebligation undar such defined benefitptan is determined basad on actuarkal veluations carrled out by an
external actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan In its batance sheet as an asset or)
Hability.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past senvice costs, gaing and lesses on cwrtallments and non-routine settlements; and

= hetinterest oxpanse or Income

Actuarial gaing or logses are recognised in other comprehensive incomes Further, the statement of profit and loss does nat Include an expected retem on plan
assets. Indtesd, Ast intergst recognised in the statement of profit and loss Is cabculsted by applying the discount rate used to mieasure the definad benefit]
obligation to the net defined beneft liability or agset. The actuad retwrn on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognised as part of
remeasuremant of net definad Rability or asset through ather comprehensive incame,

Re-measwrament comprising actuarial galns or losses and return on plan assats [excluding amounts included in net interest an tha net defined beneafit Bability)
arenat reclassified to the statement of profit and boss in subsequent periods,

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly atributable to the acquisitian, consiruction or productien ef an asser that necessarily takes a substantial pericd of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the sstet. Al other barrewing costs are expensed in the period in which they aceur. Barrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company Incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds.

Cash Flow Statemant
Cash lows are reported using the indirect methsd, whereby profit for the perfod |s adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals

ar accruaks of past or future.uperaﬁng cash receipts of payments and isem of incorme o expentes associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash
flows from operating. Investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Segprment Reporting

Based on the “management approach® as deflined in Ind A5 108, Operating Segments, the Chiel Dperating Decision Maker evalgates the Company's
parformance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance Indicators by business segments. Accordingly, information has been
presented along these business segmants viz. Manpawer and refated Services and Catering Services and Trading of goods.

Foreign eurrency transactions and balances
Forelgn currency transactions are translatad into the functional currency using the exchangs rates prevadling at the dates of the respective transactions. Forelgn
currency denominated monetary assets and [kabilitles are translated Into the functional currency al exchange rates In effsct a1 the reporting date.

Forelgn exchangs gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and such translation of monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in
fereign currencies are generally recogaised in the statément of profit and loss,

Non-monetary afsets and liabilities denominated in a forelgn currency and measured at falr value are transfated at the exchanpge rats prevalent ot the date
when the fair value was determined, Non-monetary assets and Eabilities denominated in 2 foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at
the exchange raie prevalent at the date of transaction. Foreign curreéncy gains and losses are reported on-a net basis. This includes changes In the fair valee of
forelgn exchange derivative Instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit ar loss,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net pralit for the period attibutalde to equity sharchalders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period, Earnings considerad bn ascertaining the Comgany's eamings per share is the net prafit for the periad after deducting
preference dividends and any attributabla tax thereto for tha period. The welghted avarage number of equity shares outstanding durkng the periad and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, ether than the conversion of potentia! equity shares that have changed the number of equity
shares sutstanding, without a correspanding change In resourees.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit o koss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of share: sutstanding during the period i adjusted for the effects of Al dilutive patential equity shares,

Mon-current assets {or disposal group) held for sale and discontinued oparations:

Men-cutrent assets and dispasal groups classified as held for sabe are measurod at the lower of their carrying value and fair valoe bess costs to sell,

Assets and dispasal proups are classfied a5 held for sale if their canvying value wall be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition Is only met when the sale ks highly probable and the asset, or disposal group, 15 available for immediate sale in its present condition and is
marketed for sale ata prica that is reasonable in relation to s cuprent fair valua;

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholdars and the wesphted average number
of shares outstanding durlng the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Where a disposal group represents a separate majpor line of business or geographlical area of operations, or is gart of e single coardinated plan to disposs of
separate mapor ling ol busineds or gesgraphicsl arca of operations, then I§ is treated 33 3 discontinued cperation, The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation together with the gain or loss recognised on its disposal are disclosed as a single smaunt in the statement of profit and |oss, with all prior pericds
belng presented on this basis.

MNew and amended Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCAY) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standerds under Companies (indian Accaunting Standards] Rules as
Issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not notfied any new standards of amendments to the existing standards agplicable to
the Company.
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Krystal Gourmet Private Limited
CIN No:U154D08H2009PTC195359

[All Amounts are % in Millions unless otherwise stated)
Motes to financial statements as at 315t March 2025

4 Other financial Assets - Non-Current

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Security Deposits given®

- considered good 17.57 8,77
Total 17.57 B8.77

*Security deposit given includes deposit given prémises taken on lease, retention deposits, license deposits, electncity deposits, water deposit and

deposits in form ERD.

5 Deferred Tax asset / (labllities) [net)

Particulars 315t March 2025 | 31st March 2024

On dilference between book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0.76 0.57

On disallowances 0.86 2,08

Tokal 1.62 2.65
6 Income tay assets (net) - Non-current

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Advance Income Tax & TDS [net af Peavizgion-3.17mnA] 0.47 0.15

Total 0.47 0.15
7 Inventorbes

Partlculars 31st March 2025 | 315t March 2024

(Valued at cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower)

Consumable items 082 1.52

Total 0.82 152
£ Trade Receivables

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

(i} Trade Receivables - Billed

Unsecured, considered good 111.32 146.92

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss | 2.90) [3.26)

Total Trade Recelvables - Billed 103.42 143.66

{iij Trade Receivables - Unbilled

Unbilled 45,00 12,50

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - -

Tatal Trade Racelvables - Unbilied 46.00 1250

Total 154.42 156.16

Trade recaivables includes :

- Dues from related parties (refer note 33) 1.0z 1.36

- Other receivables 153.40 154,20

1. The Company's exposure to credit and less allowances refated 1o trade recevables are disciosed in Note 36.

2. The amount of loss allowance (lifetime expected credit loss) has been recopnized under the Simplified approach for trade recaivable and hence break-
up of trade receivable into "significant increase in credit risk’ and "credit impaired’ has not been disclosed separately.

Trada Receivable Agwing
FY 2024-25

Category

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
< Bmonths | &mths - 1 year 1-2 yeass 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
{i} Undisputed Trade Receivabies = Considerad Goods 107.39 1.06 038 0,35 2.13 111,32
{ii} Undisputed Trade Recelvables ~ Considared Doubthul - - B - - -
{il} Bisputed Trade Recsivables — Considersd Goods - - S s =
1] Disputed Trade Receivables = Conskderad Doubtful - - - - . -
Unhilled Revenue 46.00 - - - - 46,00
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss [2.98)
Mt receivablas 154.42
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FY 2023-24

Category Outstanding for following periods from dus date of payment

< Bmonths | 6 mthe-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years Total
(il Undisputed Trade Recehables — Conskdered Goods 13B.66 5.68 D.41 1.30 0.6 146,92
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables = Cansidared Doubrful - - - - - -
(iil] Dlsputed Trade Recalvables = Considered Goods - - - - -
{kv) Ddsputed Trade Receivables — Considered Dowbtful . - - - -
Unbilled Revenug 12,50
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss {3.26)
Met receivables 156,16
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
In current account with Banks 69.96 11.08
Cash on hand 0,30 0.75
Total 70.25 11.84
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents above
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Bank deposits wilh maturity within 12 months from the reporting date* 0.02 0.08
Total 0.02 0.08
*@ank deposits are held as Margin money against bank guarantee,
Loans - Current
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Unsecured, considered good - repayable on
Loan ko Others 56.03 =
Total 56.03 *
Other Current Financlal Assets
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Advances to Employees 0.65 -
Advances to Dther than related parties . 4.40
Total 0.65 4.40
Income tax assets [net) - Current
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Advance Income Tax & TOS (Net of Provision) 1L.76 0.33
Total 1.76 0.33
Other Current Assets
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 315t March 2024
Advances to Supplier J6.67 0.65
Receivable from government authority 4.23 -
Prepald expenses 0.10 5.04
Total 81.00 5.69
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| Motes to linancial statements as at 315t March 2025

Equity Share capital
Particulars 31st March 2025 31zt March 2024
[a) Authorised
7.50,000 {31 March 2024:7,50,000) Equity Shares of % 10/-each 7.50 7.50
T1.50 7.50
(b} Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
5,472,655 [ 31 March 2024; 5,42 655 ) Equity Shares of 1 10/- each 6.43 643
Total £.43 6.43
MNates :
{i) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares and Amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars 3ist March 2025 315t March 2024
No. of Equity Shares Amount Mo. of Equity Shares Amount
Equity shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 642,655 643 642,655 B.43
Add : lssue of equity shares during the year - - = -
Eruity shares gutstanding 33 at the end of the year B42,655 6.43 642,655 E.43
{ii} Shares held by holding eompany/promoter
MName of the shareholder {promoter) 3151 March 2025 315t March 2024
Mumber of Shared % of Holding Murmnber of Shares % of Holding
Krystal Integrated Services Umited 62,655 10000 B43,655 100.00%
B42,655 100.00% £42, 655 100, 00%
Ther is no change in promotors sharehalding in the current year and praceding financlal year,
{iif) Details of Sharehaldars holding more than 5% of Equity Shares of the Company
Mame of the shareholder 315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Mumber of Shares % of Halding Number of Shares % of Halding
Krystal Integrated Services Limited G421, 655 1005 B42,655 100%
632,655 1005 B42,655 100%

{iw] Terms f rights attached to eguity shares

The company has anly one class of equity shares having par valuz of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shzras is antitled to one vote per share, The

Company, If declares dividands pays In Indian rupees. The dividend If any proposed by the Board of Directors b5 subject to the approval of the

shareholdars in the Annual General meeting.

[v] Thizre are no bonus sharas issuid or shares Bought back during the perind of 5 years immediataty preceding the reparting date.
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16 Other Equity
Particulars Amount
(a ) Securities Premium Raserve
Asat 31st March 2023 11.08
Add/fiLess): Addition/[deletion) during the year -
As at 31st March 2024 11.08
Addf{Less): addition/(deletion] during thi year
As at 31st March 2025 11.08
{b) Retained Earnings
As at 31st March 2023 1850
Add: Profit for the year 333
Add: Dther comprehensive income 10.20]
Az at 31st March 2024 21.63
Add: Profit for the year 17.51
Add: Other comprehensive income 0.03
As at 31st March 2025 39,57
Brief description of other equity:
a, Securities Premium: This reserve represents amounts recefved in addition 1o the par value of shares. The utilisation of the securitles premium will be
in accordance with the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013,
b, Retained Earnings: This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the company. This reserve is free reserves and can be utilised for any purpose as
may be reguired, Al Adjustments arising on 2ccount of transition te Ind AS are recorded under this reserve.
17 Bnrmwinp = Non-current

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Secured
From Banks
Wehicle Loans 0.53 0.65
[Refer note (i} {a) and {ii] (3] befow)
Less: Current matorities of long term foans [refer table betow) [0.11) (D.12)
Total 042 0.53
*Infarmation about the Companys’ expasure to Interest and liguidity risk is included in Note 37.
Breakup of current maturities of long term borrowings
Particulars 312t March 2025 31st March 2024
Secured
Fram Banks 011 0.12
Tatal 0.11 0.12

SECURED

)] Mature of Security

(a} vehicle loans from banks are securad against specific charga on the respective vehicle,

[}  Maturity Profile and Rate of Interest

[a) ‘ahicke loan from Bank are repayable in equated monthly instalments, maturity date and Rate of Intarest is highlighted in the following tabla.

Rats of Interest (in %) Maturity Dats Name of Bank Secure agalnst
11.8 24-How-25 [8]:1] Activa two wheeler
9 21-Now-29 Lig1 Marutl Cas four wheeler
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Lease liabilities

Particulars 315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Lease lizbilities [Refer nole 36) 7.45 9.61
Tatal 7.46 8.61
Current 236 215
Man-current 5.10 746
Provisions

Particulsrs 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for Gratuity {Refer Note 33) 146 1.01
Total 1.46 1.01
Barrewings - Current

Particulars 31ist March 2025 31st March 2024
Unsecured

Fram Related Parly 202,72 3145
Current Maturities of long term debt :

From Bank 011 012
Tatal 202,83 31.57
Trade Payables

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Total outstanding dues af micro enterprises and small enterprises - 141
Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 94.60 100.68 |
Total 94.60 102.08

The infarmation 35 required to be dizciosed pursuant under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devalopment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Particulars

31st March 2025

31st March 2024

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year®

- Principal amount due to micro and small entérprises

1.41

- Interest due to Micre, Small And Medium Enlerprises

0.00

—The amount of intarest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2005 alang with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each aceounting year

The amount of Interest due and payable for the pariod of delzy in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the periad) but without adding thi Interest specified under the MSMED
act 2006,

The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of each sccounting period.

0.00

“The amount of further interest remaining due and payakble even in the succeeding years, untll such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a

daductible expenditure under saction 23 of the MSMED Act 2006,

*Bues to Micrs, Small and Medium Enterprises including interest have been determin ad 1o the extent such parties have been (dentified

information collected by the Management and information callected in this regard, This has been relizd upon by the auditors,

Trade Payables Ageing
FY 2024-25

on the basks of

Category

Dutstanding ler lollewing periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yoars

More than 3 years

Taotal

{i] MSME . = =

{i5) Orthars 8685

0.04

{ill} Disputed dues —MSME - : S

[iv) Disputed dues - Dthers e . =

Total BG.BS

.04
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FY 2023-24

Category Dutstanding for following periods from due date of paymant

Less than 1 year 1-2 years -3 years More than 3 years Total
[1] MEMIE 141 - - - 141
[ii} Dthars 9915 122 0.00 .31 10068
(isi]) Disputed dues = MSME a - - . G
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Tatal 100.55 122 0.00 [+K 33 107,08
Other financial lkabilities
Partlculars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Security Deposits o003 -
Outetanding Liabilities 41.27 36.51
Total 41.29 36.61
Gther Currant Liabilities
Particutars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Advange from customer - 0.0
statutory labilities 4.51 1.68
Total 4,51 1.78
Provisions
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Pravision for Gratuity (Refer Note 23] 0.27 0.21
Total 0.17 0.21
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(Al Amounts are % in Millions unless otherwise stated)
Motes to financlal statements as at 31:t March 2025

15 Revenue from operations

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Sale of Services (net of taxes)
Manpower and related services 16.42 13.90
Sale of goads 160.40 -
Catering Services 575.17 2856.85
Total 751.99 300.34
Other Income
Particulars 3ist March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Interest income on:
- Deposits with banks 028 0.21
- interest on Loans 1.14 -
- Interest on Financial Assets 0.04
Profit on sale of Properties, Plant and Equipmants 0.0 -
Miscellanesus [ncome 0.45 oor
Total 1.82 0.27
Cost of material and store and spare consumed
Particulars 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Inventories of materials, store and spares as al the beginning of the year 152 1.16
Add ; Purchases of materials 61161 198,70
£613.13 199.86
Less @ Inventories of materials, store and spares as at the end of the year 0.82 152
Total 612.31 198,39
Emplayes Benafit Expandes
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Salaries and wagos 3b.80 28,53
Contributions to provident and other funds 2.03 1581
Staff welfare expenses 1.19 0.79
Total 40.13 3133
Finanee Cost
Particulars 315t March 2025 31st farch 2024
interest expenses 7.38 2.62
Interest on lesse labilities 0.82 0.92
Other borrowing costs . 0.0
Total B.31l 3.61
Depreciation snd Amortisation
Particulars 315t March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Depreciation on tangible assets {refer note 3{a}) 342 334
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer nota 3{b}) 1.51 2.08
Tatal 5.04 5.42




31 Other Expenses

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Transport Charge 1.72 120
Office Expenses 0.21 0.Ea
Bank Charges 0.15 0.08
Commission/Brokerage 191 013
Pawer and fuel 436 31.63
Rent (Short term leases) 25.20 23.09
Repairs and Maintenance 150 145
insurance 0.33 0.22
Rates and taxes a.o7 0.08
Hire Charges 0.64 028
Travelling expenses {Including foreign travelling) 0.34 032
Lodging & Boarding Expensas 164 2.29
Less allowance on financial assets, net

- Trade recelvable (billed and unbilled) {Hefer Note 36) [D.SE] 132
Conveyance axpenses 9.87 8.28
Communicaticn Expensas n.ar 0.03
Balance Write off 1,53 0,77
Tender Expenses [Rs. 3.725/~, PY Rs. 4,150/-) o0.00 0,00
Printing and stationery 0.55 0as
Legal and professional fees 1.75 0,25
Payment to audizors [refer note (i} below] 0.73 063
Water Charsge 133 L15
Advertisement Expenses 0.42 117
Business Promotion Expenses 159 053
Ineligible G5T Expanses 346 7.80
Interest on Late Payment of G5T 0.02 001
Interest on Late Payment of TDS 0.4 ooz
Miscellaneous Exponses 113 0.80
Total 60.07 56.59
Mote - (i) : Payment to Auditor's [excluding G5T)

Particuilars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

= Statutory audit fees 058 025
- Limited review fees - 0.08
- Tax Audlt Fees 0.17 0.15
- Other matters 0.04 0.15
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Notes to financial statements 25 at 31st March 2025

Mote 32

Earnings per equity share

Basic earning per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the yesr attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares cutstanding during the year.

|Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity helders (after adjusting For intersst on the convertible preference shares) by the
weighted average number of eguity shases sutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be isued on conversion of al
the dilutive patential equity sharas into sguity shares.

|Particulars 31st March 2025 315t March 2024
I. Profit attributable to Equity holders
Profit attributable to equity hoidars
Profit artributable 1o equity holders far basic earmings 17.81 B33
Frofit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution 1.1 3133

fi. Welghted average number of ordinary sharsy
Issuad ordinary shases as at 52,655 47,655

Weighted average number of shares at 5ept 30 for EPS 642,655 642,655

Basic and diluted earmings per share

Basic earnings per shase 787 517
Diluted samings per share 27.87 517
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2025

MNote 33 : Employee benefit expense

The Company cantributes to the following post-emplaymant defined benefit plans in India.

A (1} Defined Contribution Flans:

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to 2 defined contribution retiremant benefit plan for qualifying employees, Under the plan, the
Company Is required to contribute a specified peroentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan o fund the benefits,

The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are 2t rates specified inthe rules of the schemes.
The Company recognised Rs. 2.03 Mn -314t March 2035 [Re. 1.80 Mn - 315t March 2024] far pravident and ather fung eontributions in tha Statement of Profic and

(i) Defined Benefit Plan :
*The Company has a defined benefit pratuity plan in India, povernad by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, It entitlas an employee, who has rendered at least five
years of continuous service, to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for eeery completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months, based an the

rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned, These delined benefit plans exposa the Company te actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk
and Market (investment) rigk.

A. Assets and Rabifities related to employee benefits

Based an the sctearial valustion ebrained in this respect. the following table sets out the states of the gratulty plan and the amounts recognised in the Company®s
financlal staterments as at balance sheet dare:

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Falr value of plan asset . -
Prasent value of obiigations {1.74] {123}
Asset [ (Uability) recognised In Balance Sheet [1.74] {1.22) |
Mon-current 1,46 1m
Curmant [ 0.

A. Movement In net defined banefit liability

Defined benefit oblizgation

i 315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Dipening balince 12 051
included In profit or loss
Current service £ost a7 0.35
Interast cost [iIncome) 0.0a 0.04

A L78 0.54
Included in OCI

Remeasurement loss [gain):
Actuarial loss {gain) adsing from:

Financlal assumptions 0.08 0.23

Experiance adjustment {0.13] 0.25
. {0.09) 0.28

Other

Benefits pald C - -

Clasing balance {AsB4L) 1.74 1.22

PAaturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation from the reporting year

ard ath 5th Sum of
RTEowne B Following o oving Following  Followly  Years8To
Year YeEar Year Yoar Vaar 1
T13t March 2025 0.27 nia 017 0.13 0,18 048
315t March 2024 0.2t 0.10 010 011 0.09 0.36

C. Movement fn Fair valua of plan assets
Thiz Company's policy is to maintsin sufficient funds to mes? its abligations under the defined benefit plan. The Company believes that the current level of funds is
pdequate to covar future benefit payments.

The following table shows a reconcillation from the opening balances to the closing balunces for fair value of asset and its components:

Particulars Fair Value of Assats

315t March 2025 31st March 2024

Opening bafanca

Transfer in/{out) plan assets
Expenses deducted from the fund = +
Interest Income . .
Aeturn on plan assets excluding amounts inchided in interest income ¥ E
Contributions by empboyer .
Benafits paid
Clasing balance - el




D. (i) Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars 31st March 2025 315t March 2024
Current service cost [ X ) 038
Inberest cost .08 004
Interest income =
Met gratubty cost 055 0.43
(i} Re-measurement recognised in ather camprehensive income

Particulars 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Re-mensurement net defined benefit zbiflity [0.04) 0.23
Re-measurement net defined benefit azset - -

(0.04] 0.28

0. Defined benefit obligations

i Actuarial sasumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at tha reporting date (exprassed as weighted suerages)
|Particulars 335t March 2025 3 024
Discount rate 6.70% 720%

Salary escalation rate 700 T.00%

The attrition rate varies from 5% to 50% (PY; 1% to 50%] for various age grouvps,
Mtortality rate varies frerm 0.09% to 1.15%, Fublished rates under Indlan Assured Lives Mortalip

Il. Sensitivity analysis

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Reatonably possible changas at the raporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumgtions constant, would have affected the

3151 March 2025 31st March 2024
Pl Increase | Decreass | Increase | Decrease
Rate of discounting (1% movement) 158 182 112 135
Rae of salary increasa (1% movement) 1.87 1.ED 131 111
Rate of employee turnover (10% mavemneni 1.59 1.79 120 1.8

|the assumpticns shawn,

Although the analysis does nat take account of the full distribution of cash flaws expacted under the plan, it does provide an appraximation of the sengitivity of
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Mote 34 : Related Party Disclosure "

Disclamires as required by the Indian Acceunting Standard 24 [Ind AS 24] on "Related Party Disclosures™ are given below:
. Nature of relationship

Ultimate Holding Company

Krystal Family Holdings Private Umited

Halding Campany
Krystal integrated Services Limited (Formely Krystal Integrated Services Private Limited)

‘Company In wihich Managamant has significant influence, with whom transaction carried out during the year
Krystal Allied Services Put Lid
‘Volksara Techno Solutions Private Umited

Key Management Personnal
fire. Megta Lad

fir. Pravin Lad

g Saily Prasad Lad

M. Sanjay Dighe

Br. Shubham Lad

Rekative of Key Management Personmel

®r. Prased Led
EB. Transactions and dlosing balance with the Related Parties are as under:
Year ended 315t March | Year ended 31st March
5 Mo |Particulars 2035 2034
1 |5ale of Service
= Krystal Integratad Services Uimited 13.00 7.08
- Wolksara Techno Solutizns Private Limited 063 01
- Kite Allled Services Private Limdted (Formerly knaawn as
Krystal Allied Services Private Limited | 016 .04
= Krystal Aviatian Senvdices Private Limited .04 -
- Prasad Lad - 0.25
1 |Rent expense paid to
= Erystal Integrated Serdcas Limited 0.49 013
3 |Interest Expenses
- Knystal Integrated Senvicas Limited 733 262
A |Loan taken
- Krystal Integrated Services Limited 17634 2647
5 |Lagn repaid
= Krystal Integrated Senvices Limitad 12.02 10.74
Balance cutstanding at the end of year:
1 |Loan Taken
- Krystal integrated Services Limited 202,68 3145
1 |Account Recelables
= Knystal Integrated Serdices Limited 102 135 |
- Knystal Allizd Services Private Limited - 0.00
-Walksara Techna Solutions Pyt Ltd - Salag

Notes

1 Tranzactions shown abeve are excluding G5T, IF any.
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MNotes to financial statements as at 31st March 2025

Note- 35 : Dislosure under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company i2 engaged Into manpower and caterlng sendees, There s no impact on the company’s revenue on applying Ind AS 115 from the contract with

Customers.

The following takle presents the disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers;

Sales by type of service/Goods

Particulars A1st March 2025 | 3ist March 2024
Sale of Services:
Manpower Services 1642 13.09
Catering Services £75.17 286.85
Sale of Goods;
Maize Sales 160.40 -
Total 75193 300.84
Sales by performance obligations
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Revenue by time of recognition
At a point in time 735.57 136,85
Cver the period of time 16.41 13.08
Total Revenue 751.99 300.84
Revenue by geographical Marchket
India™ 751.99 300.84

751.99 300.84
*Company cpenates into single geagraphical Market, i.e, india.
Contract balances:
The following table provides information about categery of trade receivahles:
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Billed 108.42 143,66
Unhbilled 46.00 12,50
Total 154.42 156.16
The following table provides information about unbilled revenue from contract with customers
Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1250 -
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 751.99 144.74
Less: invoiced during the year T18.49 132.24
Less : Loss allowance recognised during the year - -
Balance as at tha end of the year 46,00 12.50
Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer
Particulars

31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price 751.93 300,84
Adjustments made to contract price on account of ==
a) Disgounts / Rebates / Incentives
by} Sales Returns / Credits / Reversals - =
Revenue from contract with customer 751.99 300.83

Contract liabilitias

Advance collections are recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied.

This includes advances received from the customer towards sale of goods. Revenue is recognised once the performance ebligation is met |.&, vpon transfer

of cantrol of promised goods to customers.

Mevements in Contract lizbilities

Particulars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
Dpening contract liabilities 0,10 -
Less: amount recognised in revenue {0.10) -
Add: amount received in advance during the year * 0.10
Closing contract labilities — 0.10
I ,"‘-,L
N
Y
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Nota 36 | Lenses

Following is carrying value of right of use assets and the movements thereof ;

The Company's lease asset primarily consist of lzases for bulldings and Plant & Machbnery having various lease terms, The.twnpan'r alsa hiae certain
lo@ses of with lease terms of 12 months or less, The Company appliss the ‘short-term laase’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

| Right-of-use assets
For the year ended
Lol 31stMarch 2025 | 31t March 2024
Opening Gross Block 11.85 9.22
Addition 0.04 .74
Deletion - =
Clasing Gross Block 11.99 11.85
Opening Accumulated amortisation 3.15 1.08
Addition 251 108
Delation - -
Closing Accurnulated armortisation 5.67 315
MNet Block as an 6.32 B.80
Following |s carrying vabee of Lease Liabifity and the movements thereof;
Lease Liability
40 Faor the year ended
Bl 325t March 2025_|_31st March 2024
Opening Balance 061 B.45
hddition - 172
Interest Cost accrued during the year 0.52 0.9z
Lease liability payment {3.05] {2.48)
| Debetion - =
Closing Balance 7.5 5.61
Currant leaza Eability 136 115
Mo = Currant lease liabifity 5.0 5.34
Total leaze lsbillty 7406 7.4%

refated to leass Eabilities as and when they fall due.

IThe table below grovides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of lease llabikitizs an an undiscounted basis:

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease Nabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations

Far the year ended

Pl 3istMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
Mot later than goe yrar 136 1.15
Later than one year snd not later than five years 5.10 TAE

|Latar than five years
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Nate-37: Disclosures on Financial Instrument

Financial instruments — Falr walues and risk mansgement

A. Accounting classification and falr values

The following table shows the corrying armounts and feir values of financial azsets and financial liabiities, including their levels in the fair vplue higsarchy. 11 does not include
falr value information for financial assets and financhal lakilities not measurad at fair value if the carrying amaunt is @ reasonakle approximaticn of fair value,

Carrying amount Fair valug
31 March 2025 FVTOCE  Amortisad Total Level2  Lewel3d Total
Cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents and Bank balances - 70.25 7025 - 7025 70.25
Bank Balances other than abowe - 002 0.0z 0.0z 002
Non-current financial Aszets - 17.57 17.57 17.57 17.57
Trade receivables - 15442 154.42 - 154,42 154.42
Current financial Assats - Loans - 56.03 56.03 - 56.03 56.03
Other finantial assets - 0.65 0.65 - 085 065
- 298.93 298.93 - Z9E.93 238,93
Financial iabilities
Mon Current Borrowlngs - [FE 0.42 - 0.42 04l
Current barrowings - 202.83 202.83 - 202.83 202.83
Lease Liakilities T.46 746 7.6 146
Trade payables - 24,60 94,60 - 04,60 460
Other financial liabilities - 4139 41.29 - 41.29 4139
- 346.60 24660 & 3d6.60 336.60
Carrying amourit Fair valug
31 March 2024 FTFL  FVTOCI  Amaortised Tatal Level 2 Lewe| 3 Tatal
Cast
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents and Bank balances - 11.84 11.54 = 11384 11.84
Bank Balances othar than above - 0.08 0.02 - 0,08 o8
Hon-current financial Assets 7 877 BI7 - BT 877
Trade recelvables - 15616 156,16 - 156.16 156.16
Current financial Assets - Loans - . - - - -
Other financial assets . 4.40 4.40 - a.40 4.40
- IBL.24 181.24 181.24 18123
Financial Nabilities
Nan Current Borrowings - 053 053 - 0,53 0.53
Currant borrowings - 3157 31.57 - 3157 31.57
Lease Liabilitics 961 9.61 9.61 9461
Trade payablas - 102,08 102,08 - 102.08 102 08
Othar financial lahilities - 36,51 16.61 - 36.61 3661
- 180.41 1B0.41 = 1ED.41 1A0.41

B. Measurement of fair values [Key inputs for valuation techniques) :

1. Listed Equity Investments (other than Subsidiaries and Joint Venture) : Quoted Bid Price on Stock Exchange {Level 1]

7. Valuation technbgues and significant unobsenable Inputs: Mot applicable (Leval 3)

C. Transfers between Levels 1 and 2

There wera no transder from Level 1 0o Level 2 o vige versa in any of the repoiting periods.




Note-38: Financial risk managomant

The Company has exposure to the followlng risks arlsing from financlal Instruments:
= Crodit rigk ;

= Ligubdity risk ; and

= Marchket risk

I, Risk management framewark t

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishrment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The baard of directors s
responsible for develeping and manitaring the Company's risk management policics

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriata risk limits and controis and to monitor rsks
and adherence to Amis. Rlsk management policies and systems are reviewad regularly to reflect thanges in Marchket conditions and the Company’s activities, The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, alms to malntain a disclplined and constructive control envirenment In which all employess understand their
roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitars compliance with the company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
menagement framewark In relation to tha risks faced by the Company. The audit committee s assisted in ks oversight role by Internal audit, Internal audit undertakes both
reaular and ad-hoc reviaws of risk management controls end procedures, the results of which ase réported o the audit commitree.

fii. Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial lass to the Company if 3 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 1o meet s contractual obligations and arises principally from
thie Company's receivables from cestomers and investments in debt securitios.

The carrying amount of following financial assats represents the maximum credit exposure;

Trade and other recaivables

Trade receivables as on 31st March 2025 is T154.42Mn {31 March 2024 1 ©156.15Mn |, The Company has disclosed concentration of customer under segment reparting in
Consclidated Financial Statement,

The Company's exposure to credit risk s inllueznced mainly by the individual charactenstics of pach customer. However, management also considers the factors that may
Influence the credit risk of its customer basa, including the defsult risk of the industry and country in which customars oparate.

The Company has established a credit policy undar which each new customer is analysed individually for creditwarthiness before the Company's standard paymant and

dafivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, IF they are availabla and In some casas bank references. Sale limits are establishad
for each customer.

fis par simplified approach, tha Comipany makes provision of expected credit losses on trade recelvables In accordance of the reguirement of Ind A5 109.

s at reporting date, the maximum expasure ta credit risk for trade and other receivables by geographic region was as follows:

Carrying amount {in Rs.}

31st March | 315t March
202 2024
India 154 .42 156.16
154,47 156.16

Managemant balleves that the unimpaired amounts that sre past duas sre still eolleeribhe in full, based on histerical payment behaviour and extensive snalysis of custamer
credit risk conducted by managemant,

The mavemant in the allowance for Imaalrment in recpect of trade and other recelvables during the year was as follows:

3158 March | 3ist March
| a02s 024
Opening balance 36 372
Provision for receivables impairment {0.36) (0.4
Cloging balanes 2.50 3.26

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company maintains its Cash and cash equivalents and Bank deposits with banks having good reputation, goed past track record and high quality credit rating and alsg
reviews thelr credit-worthiness on an on-golng basis.

Derivatives

The derivatives deals are done with AD eategory banks in OTC Marchkel and registered brokers in ETCD Marchkar




ik, Ligubdity risk

Liguidity risk is tha risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or anather
financlal asset. The Company's approach to managing Bguldity Is to ensure, as far as passible, that it will have sufficient liguidicy to meet its llakiities when they are duse, under
both nosmal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Campany uses product-based costing to cost ks praducts and services, which assists it in manitoring cash flow requirernents and optimizing it cash return on Investments.
The Company manitars the level of sxpected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.

Exposure to Hguldity risk

The fallowing are the remeining contractusl maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date. The amounts sre gress and undiscounted, and include estimated interast

payments and exchide the impack of netting agreements,

31 March 2025 Carrying Contractual eash flows
iZmenthsor I-2years 2-Syears Mare than 5
armont
less WIars
Non-derivative financial lsbilities
Mon-Current Borrowings 0,42 - 0.4z -
Current borrowlings 202,83 202.83 - - -
Laase Llabilitles T.46 510 136 - -
Trade payables 94,60 60 - - -
Other hinancial llabilities 41.29 41.28 - - -
11 March 2024 Gorrag Contractual cash Nows
e 12 monthsor  1-2yeors 21-5years More than 5
less yBirs
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-Current Bormowings 0.53 - Q.53 . -
Current borrowlngs 3157 31.57 - . .
Lease Liabilities 961 745 215 - -
Trade payablay 102.08 10%.08 - - -
Dther fimancial iabilities 36.61 36.51 = = %

The gross inflows/{outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the ontractual undiscoumted cash flows relating to dedvative financial labilities held for risk management
purposes and which are not usually closed out before contractual maturity, The disclosure shows net cagh llow amounts for derivatives that are net cash-setlled and gross cash

inflow and outflow amounts for derivatives that have simultanegus gross cash settlement.
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(Al Ampunts are T in Millions unbess othenwise stated)
Motes to finpncial staternents as at 31st March 2025

MNata 38- Firancial Instruments = Falr values and risk management (continued)

I, Market risk

macket risk s the risk that changes in Market prices — such as fereign exchange rates and interest rates —will affect the Company’s income ar the valus of its
haldings of financial mstrumants. Markist rigk s attributable ta all Masket risk sensitive financial instrisments including foreign curfency recevables snd payables
and kong term debt. We are exposed ta Market risk primarily related o forsign exchanpe rate risk and iterest robe risk. Thus, our exposure to Market risk s 2
funiction of revenue generating and cosrating activities in foreign eurrensy. The ahjective of Markat risk management |s o aveld axcessive exposure I eur fareign
currency rewenues and coats.

Cufrency risk
The Comparny |s expased to cirrenay risk on accaunt of its borrowings, Trade payable, other payables and receivablesin foreign corrency. The functianal esrrenty

of tha Company ks indian Aupes. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hadge s currency risk, miost with a maturity of bass than one year fram the
repocting date. There Is no currency risk exposure on the balance shest date.

Tha Company does not wse derivative finsncial instruments for trading or speculative purpases

|interest rate risk

Intereil rite fisk can be sither fair valea interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fadr valug Interest rate risk s the risk of chonges in fair values of fixed
interest bearing finacial instruments because of fluctuations In the Imterest rates, Cash fow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of footing
interest beading finandal instruments will Aectuate because of fluctuations in'the interest rates.

Expasure to Interest rate risgk

The Company's intersst rate risk arises from borrawings and fixed income financlal instruments. Barmowings issued at fixed rates exposes to fair valus interest rate
risk. The istarest rata profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financal instruments as reparted ta the management of the Compeny i a2 follows.

315t March 2025 31st March 2024

Fixed-rate Instruments
Fenancial assets - .
Fenancial liabikties 0.53 0.65

(0.53) {0.B5]

Varlable-rate instrumants
Financial assats - -
Flnancial liahilities 20232 31.45

{z0z.72} {51.45)
Tatal {203.25) {22.16]

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fxed-rate instrumants

The Company does not account For any fixed-rate financial sssets or finsncial lishillities at Tair value through profit or foss, and the Company does not designate

devivatives a5 hedging imstruments under a fair value hedge acceunting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect prafit or
s

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate Instrumants

A reasanatily possible change of 100 basis paints in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown
{below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, In particar farelgn currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Im. Profit ar fioss) bafore tax

100 by increasa | 100 bp decreasa
Cazh flow sensithity inet)
31 March 2025
Variahle-rabe Instruments [2.03) .03
Cash How sensitivity (net) (103} .09
31 March 2024
Variable-rate nstruments {oai) 031
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Mote 39 : Capital Management

The Company’s palicy Is to maintaln 2 strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and Market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business.

Thie Campany monitors capital using a ratlo of "adjusted net debt’ to *adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjustad net debt is defined as total bormowings, comprising
imterest-bearing loans and barrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all componants of Bquity.

The Company’s adjusted net dabt to equity ratio at 31 Mareh 2025 and 31 March 2024 was as follows,

31st March 2025 3ist March 2024
Total berrowings 203.35 3zao
i ¢ 70.25 11.84

|Less & Cash and cash equivalant induding bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted nat daht 133.00 0,26
Tetal equity 57.07 39.13

Less ; Hedging reserve - .
Adjusted equity 57.07 35,13
Adiustad net debt to adjusted equity ratio 2.33 0.52

In additian the Company has financial covenants relating to the borrowing facilities that it has taken from the lendars like interest coverage service ratio, Debt to
EBITDA etc. which is maintained by the Company.
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Mates to financlal statements as at 31st March 2025

Maote- 40- Contingent ltabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

a. Contingent liabifitics* 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Demands raised by Service tax authorities 6.37 6.37

The Management is of the view that it has valid grounds to defend the demand raised by Provident Fund Department for Damages and Intarest
Liabilities and consequently no effect was given in the accounts.

b. Commitments 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024

Estimated amaunt of contracts remaining to be executed on canital - =

(i) Pending resalution of the respective procesdings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of the cash outflows, if any, in respect
of the above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgement/decisions pending with various ferums/authorities.

(i) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provislons are required and disclosed
23 contingent fiabilides whara applicatle, In its financlal statements, Based on the opinfan received, the company deoes not expect the outcome of thesa
proceedings to have a materially adverse affect on its financial position.
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(A Amourds are B In MiEons unless elhervéss slated)
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Mote-01
[a) Amounts recagnised in profit and loss

For thi year ended
Pt 315t March 2025 I 31st March 2024
Current Income tax [T 317
Changes in tax estirmates of prior years - -
Deferred income tax ability f (asset), net
Ovigination and reversal of temporary differences 102 {47k
Change in tax rate - -
Deferred =x pxpense 102 {B.57]
Tax expensa for the year 8.28 2.50

&} Amounts recognized in other compreh

For the year ended 31st Mareh 2025 For the year ended 315t March 2024
Particulars Bafora tax Taa [expense) Net of tan Bedore tas Tax {ewpense) Netof tax
benafic benefit
Itemi that will not be reclassifiad Lo profit or loss
Remeasurements af the defined benafit plans 00 (o.61) o.o3 [0.28) [k [0y
.09 {o.02} Q.03 (0.28) 0.08 [EEL))
fel Reconcillation of affective tu rate
For the year ended
Fpeciar 31t March 2025 | 3138 Manch 2024
Profit belore tax .17 5E3
Statutary income tac rate 5.1 15.17H
Tex uzing the Company’s domestlc tax rate B84 147
Tax effect of:
Hon-deductible fax exponses B4 0.0
Others [6.42} {16}
9,26 .50

Effectiva Rate of Income Tax 34.07% A2.94%|
[d} Movement in deferred tax balances
Particulars Het balanco Recognisedin - Recognised Het balance

31 March 2028 profit or los in 01 31 March 2024
Deferred tax paset
Property, plant and equipment .58 10.19] - o7
Compensated sbsences, gratulty and equity valuation 038 0.6 aox .31
Trsde receivables LE 115 - 0.5
Tax assets (Labilities] {net) LES 1.02 0.01 1.62

Nethbalance Recogniged in Recogniged Met balsnce

Peticatun 31 March 2023 profit or loss inOCI 31 March 2024
Paferred tas asset
Froparty, plant and eguipmient a.71 @13 e .59
Compensated ohsences, gratuity and equity valustion 109 a.79 [0.08) bag
Trade recaivables 0.08 [1.59) - 168
Tan assets [Liabdlities) (nat] 1.90 (0LET) [0u08) 2.65 |

defarred tax labilities refate to income tacos lesied by the same tax authority.

which deferred Income tax assets will be recovered.

Tau losses for which no deferred tae assel was recognised.
In respect of capltal boss
Expiry date 31/1/202%

31 March 2025

The Company offsets tax assets and liablities if and only if It has a legally enfarceable rght to sek off current tax adsets and current tax liabdities and the delerred tax as<ets and

significant managemaent Judgement b required In determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and llabilities and recoverabilisy of deferred income rax
assets, The recowerability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of takshle income by each jurisdiction in which the relevant entity operstes and the pedod aver

31 March 2024
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Motes to financial stataments os at 315t March 2025

Hte - 42
Ratios a2 at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
7 Asat Asat ariation
.|P a mang
5. Mo, |Particulars 31 March 2024_| 31 March 2023 | 24 vs 23 Reasan for Varianca than 25%
1  |Current Ratlo 106 1.03 Fi Na major variance,
. ariance is due to additional barrowings
, %
1 |Dwebt-Equity Ratia 3.56 082 a3 eaiany kvt the et
3 |pabt service foverage radio 3.70 a7 6% Dt Increase in profit For the year,
4 |Retwrn on equity ratio 37.64% B.3A% 349%  |Dwe to Increase in profit fof the year.
5 |imventary turnover ratio 52145 147,66 1535 .Su[:lll:'l.u!] tecemene In COS o pecoit
ol increase in salas.
B |Trade receivabile turnover ratin 4.54 34 % Vhie s tanim . oo 1 e,
recoverability.
Ratio increased due fo increase cast of
7 |Trade payabile turmover ratio 6.23 330 E3% materia and reduction in trade payables
comparately.
Dacreased on accaunt on increase in fet
B |Mat capital tarnower ratio GO.E7 107.EL A4%  (working capita cornpared to incraase in
turnoves.
veradl increase is on account of increased
9 |Met profit ratio 238N L11% 115% foveniis Brom Operation.
(Owverall Increass is-on account of increased
10 |Retuen on capital employed B5.19% 2110% Z09% Rererus froen Operstica.
Return on irvestment is not applicable as
Ll 1o e R thers i4 na Investrment made.

Formauls for computation of ratios ara as follows:

5. Mo, |Particulars Formula

Current Adsely

1 |Current Ratie Current Lisbilities
Tatal Dbt

1 |Oebt-Equity Ratin Total Equity

3 |D=bt Service Coverags Ratia arnl re Inters weoptional Hems
Interest payments « Long term loan repayments + Lease payments

4 |Return on Equity Ratio Profit after Tox {Attributatils to Quners]
Awarage Net warth |exduding other comprehensive income)

5 |imwentory Turnaover Ratio F rial consumed & ores K spares consu
feerage Imventories

G |Trade Receleables Twmover Ratia Rayenye from opgrations.
Aueragy Trade Receivable

7 |Trade Payables Turnover Batio i med -+ changed i Fventongs raw cansumotio
Averagn Trade Payables

B |Met Capitsl Tuenaver fatlio Rewenue fram sperations
Foeerage Working Capital

9  |Nat Profit Ratio Profit afver Tax

Revenue lrom operations

10 |Return on Capital Emplayed I
Aversze Tanpikils Met Worth # Average Long Term Debt

11 |Return on investment + Diuidend Income +
fenrage FOR + Averags Investment
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Mobe - 43 Othor Statutory Infermatian:

(i) Tha company daes nat have any transactions with companies siruck off, N

{ilj The company has nat traded or investad in Crypto curmency or Virtual currency duriag the finaacial year.

{lit} The company does not hawe any charges ar satisfaction which i yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

{iw} The campary has net advanced or baanad or iovested funds to any ather persan(s) ar entity{les), Induding farelgn entities (Intermediarias] with the understanding that the
intormediary shail:

|3} drecity or indirectly land or invest in other persans ar entities identifiad in any manner whatsoever by or on bahalf of the company (Litimate Benaficlaries) or

(0] prowide any guarantes, security or the ke 1o or on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

[v) The company has not received any fund from any persanfs) or entity(ies), including foraigs antities {Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recordad Inwriting or
otherwise) that the eompany shall:

{a] directhy or indirectly |énd ar invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or anbehalf of the Funding Party (URtimate Beneficlarles) or
(bl provide any guarantse, security or the like on behald of the Ultimate Seneficiaries,

[vi) Thi eampany does nat have any such transaction which i4 not recorded in the boaks of accounts that has been surrendered ar disclosed as income during the year in the ta
assassments under the Income Tax Act, 1361 {such a4, sesrch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1561]

{wil] The company haz nat been declared a3 Wilful defaulter by any Banks, Financial institution or Dther lenders,

{uli} The Company ks In compliance with the number of layers prascribod under clawss (87) of secdon 2ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended].

rllnte No-43
Bizoks of accounts of campany Is maintained in accordance with s=ction 128 of Companles act, 2043,

Note - 45
i the opénkon of the management, the current asset, loan and advances and current labilities are approsimately of the value stated, if reafised | paid in ordinary course of
business. The provision for =8 krown liabilites is adequate and is not in excess of amounts corsidered reasanably necessary,

Hote - 46
Balasices of advances, deposits, rade reteivables, wade payables and other debst and eredit balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation In centaln casos
Adjustments, if ary, in this regard would be carried out a5 and when ascortained, which i view of the management would not be materist,

Nete- 45

s per the MEA natificashon dated August 05, 2022, the Central Govemnment has notified the Comparies {Aceaunts) Fourth Amendment Rufes. 2022, As per the smentded rules,
Companies ana reruired to maintain back-up of the ‘books of accownt and ather relevant books and papers’ ('books of account'} in electranic mode that should be accessite in
inclia at all the time. Also, the Companies are requirad te erease backup of accounts en servers physically located in India on a'daily basiz, The kaaks of sccaunt of the Company

|5 maintained in elecdranic mode oa servers physically located in bndia and are readily scoessible in indla atall times, The company i maintaining back up of books of accounts
on daily basiz.

|rote - 47
The Company evalusted subsequent svents through 30th April 2025, which is the date an which the standafcan financial statements are sppraved by the Board of Qirectors.
Based on this evalustien, the Company Is not aware of any other event or tra n that would require recagnitian or discissure in the standalone financial statements.

Note - 48
Previous years figures have bean regrouped and reclassified wherever nv\%ﬁaﬁ'

A% Per Dur Attached Report of Even Date
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Chartered Accountants
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